


provided, for any potential nominees, in the strictest confidence. It is unlikely that
individuals would be willing to put their names forward to the Commission for
consideration if they could not rely on the Commission’s confidentiality or if they felt
that their personal information would be put in the public domain.

The Information Commissioner's Office has provided clear direction that the
interpretation of Section 37 includes the policies and procedures that underpin the
process for conferring honours and dignities. The process by which peerage
applications and nominations are considered needs to remain confidential in order to
maintain the integrity of the system and to ensure that recommendations about
peerages may continue to be offered on the basis of full and honest information; and
that those who offer opinions may do so freely and honestly, in confidence, on the
understanding that their confidence will be honoured.

I have further considered the points you made in your internal review request where
you have noted:

Regarding section 37 (1)(b), these are people being conferred for a peerage by the
most powerful political figure in the land; and, if appointed, they will be able to
directly influence lawmaking. This greatly increases the public interest of their cases,
and you have not adequately reflected this in your balancing exercise. Even though
these people have for the most part not subsequently been approved, the prime
minister has made a decision to recommend them to yourselves for the honour - a
clear act of political decision-making. I should hardly need to attest why there is an
overwhelming public interest in the process being scrutinised regardless of eventual
outcomes.

Regarding sections 40(2), you should provide the letters with redactions for the
information which cannot be disclosed for reasons of GDPR. I have made a
suggestion around names, dates etc but the burden is not on me to suggest the
specific way in which you should redact the letters. If that precise method does not
work, another may. I do not accept that every word and phrase in the letters is
information covered by GDPR, neither do I accept that it can all be considered
confidential especially where adequately anonymised.

With regards to section 37(1)(b), we acknowledge that there is a strong public
interest in nominations made to the House of Lords and that there is a public interest
in knowing that the appointments process is accountable and transparent, and in
maintaining public confidence in the system. It was for this reason that the Chair of
the Commission committed to writing to the Chair of the Public Administration and
Constitutional Affairs Committee for instances where it is unable to support a
nomination after carrying out its vetting, but where its advice is not followed by a
Prime Minister and an appointment to the Lords is then made. These letters are then



placed in the public domain, via the Commission website, in order to ensure that the
public were aware of the advice provided to the Prime Minister.

Confidentiality is fundamental to the Commission’s ability to fulfil its core purpose of
nominating individuals to sit on the crossbenches of the House of Lords. It is unlikely
that individuals would be willing to put their names forward if they could not rely on
the Commission’s confidentiality in handling their nomination or if they otherwise felt
that their personal details or personally-identifying aspects of the Commission’s
consideration of their case would be put in the public domain. Similarly, I consider
there may be a chilling effect on the provision of free and frank discussions if
participants in the vetting process for peerage nominees considered that their advice
in relation to specific individuals might become public. In previous judgements, the
ICO has acknowledged the importance of such confidentiality to the smooth
functioning of the process.

With regards to your points regarding section 40(2), any information which may be in
scope once redacted we consider exempt from release under sections 37(1)(b) and
Section 41(1)(b) of the Freedom of Information Act.

If you are unhappy with the handling of your request for information you have the
right to apply directly to the Information Commissioner for a decision. The
Information Commissioner can be contacted at:

Information Commissioner’s Office
Wycliffe House
Water Lane
Wilmslow
Cheshire
SK9 5AF

Yours sincerely,

Secretariat to the House of Lords Appointments Commission




